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Name of Property

5. Classification
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(Enter categories from instructions)’ (Enter categories from instructions)
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Industry/Processing/Extraction: communications facility Vacant
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Architectural Classification Materials
(Enter categories from instructions) (Enter categories from instructions)
Late Victorian: Italianate, Renaissance Revival, Romanesque foundation Brick, Concrete
Late 19" and 20" Century Revivals: walls Brick, Terra cotta
Beaux Arts, Classical Revival, Stone: limestone, granite
ate 19" and Early 20" Century American Movement: Metal: cast iron
Commercial Style roof Slag
Modern Movement: Art Deco, Post-Modern other Steel
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Summary Description

The Main Street Banking Historic District is a five-block area on East Main Street
between 7" and Governor (13") streets, in the central business district of the City of
Richmond. The Shockoe Slip Historic District defines the eastern boundary of the
proposed district. The State Capitol grounds and other governmental buildings
establish the northern boundary, and new buildings and surface parking lots define the
western and southern edges. The proposed district represents the core of Richmond'’s
historic financial district, which was established on Main Street in 1817. The 1865
Evacuation Fire destroyed much of the financial district, except the Customs House
which survived the devastating fire. Immediately following the War Between the States,
this five-block section of Main Street was rebuilt and the financial district reinvigorated
with Northern capital. Financial institutions continue to be the dominant business in the
area today. The district contains a major collection of skillfully crafted and finely
detailed brick and stone buildings representing a variety of architectural styles including
Beaux Arts, Classical Revival, Renaissance Revival, Italianate, and Commercial. The
five-block area contains several of the city’s earliest skyscrapers. The Main Street
Banking Historic District contains twenty-one contributing buildings. Six of the
contributing buildings have been previously listed on the National Register of Historic
Places.

Detailed Description

The Main Street Banking Historic District has always been a commercial district, but like
many early commercial areas it contained residences as well. These dwellings were
replaced with commercial buildings by the first half of the nineteenth century. The
financial district was established on Main Street in 1817 when the Bank of Virginia and
the Farmer's Bank erected adjoining buildings between 10" and 11" streets. Main
Street was a commercially diverse area with iron front commercial buildings, hotels, and
even a marble yard located on the northwest corner of 9" and Main. Like the residential
buildings, hotels had disappeared from Main Street east of 5 Street by the early 1920s.
The 1865 Evacuation Fire destroyed all of the ante-bellum buildings in the proposed
district, except for the Customs House. According to the 5 October 1865 edition of The
Richmond Whig, six months after the Evacuation Fire, a hundred buildings were in the
process of being constructed. Five years after the fire, East Main Street from 9" to 14"
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Streets was considered one of the most harmonious commercial streetscapes with cast-
iron facades in America.? The south side of Main Street features a continuous block of
Renaissance Revival iron fronts that is only interrupted by two skyscrapers. Since the
Civil War, the district has been primarily a financial district.

The oldest building in the area, the Customs House (127-6031-0009) at 1000 East Main
Street, was built in 1858 in the Italianate style. It originally housed private financial
institutions as well as government offices. The Customs House, now the Federal
Courthouse and Customs House, is currently a four-story Italianate-style building on the
Main Street facade. The first story has twenty-one bays and the upper three stories
have fifteen bays. Visually the building is composed of five sections -- the second and
fourth sections recessed. Starting from the corner at 10" and Main, the first story has
five bays and the upper stories have three bays in the first, third, and fifth sections. The
second and fourth sections have three bays on all four stories. The windows on the
first, second, and third stories have semicircular arches with a keystone and paneled
pilasters on the sides. The fourth-story windows have a rectangular frame with a
stringcourse above them. There is a corbelled stringcourse above the first and second
story of the facade and quoins on all corners of the building. There is a decorative
cornice with dentils, a decorative frieze above the bays, and cresting at the roofline.
The entrance is in the original portion of the building -- the fourth section from the left.
The entrance is located in the center of the fourth section of the building with an eagle
above the cornice with volutes. At the entrance, the spandrels on the first story have
swags and cartouches and the pilasters are rusticated. The Customs House is
individually listed on the National Register of Historic Places.

As originally designed by Ammi Burnham Young (1798-1874), the Customs House was
a handsome granite Italianate-style building placed in the middle of the block between
Bank and Main Streets, with its narrow end on axis with the State Capitol. Because of
the steep grade of the site, the Main Street facade was three stories while the Bank
Street facade was only two. The Bank Street facade was originally five-bays wide with
the center three bays spaced closely together and projected slightly forward. The
centered entrance was emphasized by a one-story, triple-arched porch that was one-
bay deep. On the Main Street side, the building sat on a rusticated base containing five
arched openings. The side elevations of the building contained seven bays with the
center three bays slightly projected. It should be noted that all of the openings on the
Customs House were crowned with round arches. Quoins emphasized the corners of
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the building and a bracketed cornice and a shallow hipped roof crowned the whole. A
series of wide brick chimneys around the base of the roof gave the building's skyline an
almost crenellated effect. In 1889, wings were added to either side of the original mass.
In 1910, the building was raised to four stories and a large wing was added to the
western end, extending the building to Tenth Street. The building was again enlarged in
1930 by the addition of an eastern wing, thus taking in the entire block. It is unfortunate
that none of the historic interiors survived, although the present courtroom is in the
same location as the original one.

The commercial building at 1112 East Main Street (127-6031-0017) is a three-story,
three-bay, brick structure that was built in 1866 in the Italianate style. Most of the
Italianate features have been removed and modern elements added to the first-story
storefront which projects slightly from the facade. Two other Italianate buildings in the
district are located next door at 1114 and 1116 East Main Street (127-6031-0018 and
127-6031-0019). Built in 1866, as part of the William Mitchell Estate, these brick
commercial buildings have decorative cast-iron cornices on the facade with architrave
arches over the window bays and arched cast-iron hoods on the upper story windows.
There is a cast-iron frontispiece on the first story of 1114 East Main Street. The building
at 1116 East Main Street was originally part of the Dispatch Building, which was located
at 1116-1118 East Main until 1118 was demolished sometime between 1924 and 1940
for the widening of 12" Street.?

The Stearn’s Building (127-6031-0012) at 1007-1013 East Main Street is a fine example
of a cast-iron row that was architecturally inspired by the Venetian Renaissance Palazzi.
The Stearns Building was completed in 1869 on the former site of the Farmer's Bank
(which was destroyed in the Evacuation Fire) and its iron fagade was purchased from
Bartlett Hayward of Baltimore. George H. Johnson (1830-1879), a noted designer of
cast-iron buildings, devised the plans for the building in 1866. The Stearns Block is a
four-story, fourteen-bay, Italianate-style building with some modifications to the first
story entrances. The first-story bays are delineated by two engaged-Corinthian
columns framing an arch outlined by a rounded molding embellished by a spiraling vine.
The windows on the facade are treated uniformly with Corinthian columns on pedestal
bases, which frame each window. The facade of the building is crowned by a deep
ltalianate entablature. The Stearn’s Building is individually listed on the National
Register of Historic Places.
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Another building in the district with a cast-iron fagade is the Virginia Fire and Marine
Insurance Company building (127-6031-0013), currently known as the Branch Building,
at 1015 East Main Street. It was designed by George H. Johnson. This four-story,
Italianate-style structure, like the building to its west, has architectural elements on the
facade that are inspired by the Venetian Renaissance Palazzi. One of the most notable
features on the fagade is a four-bay loggia composed of freestanding Corinthian
columns on pedestals that carry an entablature with modillions, dentils, and a plain
frieze. The basement and first stories are recessed behind the loggia with a four-bay
arch motif executed in wood. The four-bay arched-motif is repeated on the fagade on
the second, third, and fourth stories but is executed in cast iron. On the fourth story,
there is an engaged-Corinthian order arcade and a full Corinthian entablature at the
roofline. The Virginia Fire and Marine Insurance Company building is individually listed
on the National Register of Historic Places.

There are two examples of Italian Renaissance-style brick buildings in the district on the
north side of the 800 block. The first example is at 814 East Main (127-6031-0003),
built circa 1893. This three-story, three-bay structure has decorative brickwork on the
facade, which includes brick pilasters that run from a stone cornice above the first story
to midway up the third story. The first- and third-story windows are arched with arched
molded brick lintels. There are brick spandrel panels between the second and third
stories. The other example is at 816-818 East Main Street (127-6031-0004), built circa
1893, and largely identical to 814 East Main Street except for its first story, which has a
modern storefront in pre-cast concrete and metal. Since 1939, Richmond Office Supply
has been located at 816-818 East Main Street.

Planters National Bank (127-6031-0021), also known as the Old State Planters Bank, is
the only remaining example of a Richardsonian Romanesque-style building in the
district. Located at 1200 East Main Street, it was constructed in 1893 and designed by
Charles H. Read (1846-1904). This 3’-story, three-bay steel frame structure has a
rusticated brownstone base and semicircular arched window and door frames. The
bays on the fagade are delineated by a projecting pilaster on either side of the center
bay, which extend from the second story window sill level to the lintel level of the upper
story. The building has an I-shaped gable roof with terracotta shingles and a front gable
roof gable in the center bay of the fagade. The Planters National Bank building is
individually listed on the National Register of Historic Places.
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At the turn of the twentieth century, the district's streetscape changed with the
introduction of the modern skyscraper. The skyscraper, an American invention, was
first introduced in New York and Chicago. Chicago played a leading role in the early
development of the technology and aesthetic for the “tall office building.” New York led
the way in constructing the first building over twenty stories in height — the twenty-six
story Pulitzer Building completed in 1890. Three technological advances — the self-
supporting steel frame, fireproofing, and the elevator — were essential to the
development of the skyscraper. The invention of the structural steel cage that
supported the weight of the building, rather than load bearing exterior walls, dramatically
increased the load bearing capacity needed for tall buildings. The introduction of the
elevator made the upper floors of buildings as desirable as the lower floors. Prior to the
introduction of the elevator, the limits of human endurance in climbing stairs restricted
building heights. After numerous experiments the most successful system for
fireproofing buildings was to wrap the structural members with terra cotta. The use of
light steel framing and terra cotta ornamentation evolved into the Chicago Commercial
Style which drew much of its massing and decoration from earlier Romanesque
buildings. The hall marks of the Chicago Commercial Style are a base often heavy and
rusticated that emphasizes the horizontality of the pedestal; the shaft or the expansive
window walls that are organized by vertical motifs that push the building upward, and a
cornice or crown that terminates the building.

One of the first high-rises to be built in Richmond in 1904, The Mutual Building, at 909
East Main Street (127-6031-0008), was designed by architects Clinton & Russell of New
York. This U-shaped Neoclassical Revival financial institution stands at twelve stories
and has a central light court. The facade fronts Main Street and the courtyard opens to
South 9th Street. Originally, the building was nine stories, but eight years after the
original portion was built, the upper three stories were added. The upper three stories
are delineated by paneled-Doric pilasters and molded-arched window hoods. There is
an entablature above the ninth-story windows with swags and paterae in the frieze, this
used to be the roofline of the original building. There are Doric pilasters between each
bay that run the entire length from the fourth to eighth story. The first and second
stories are part of a massive frontispiece with Doric pilasters, metal spandrels, and an
entablature. The doorframe surrounding the entrance is two stories high with Doric
columns, an entablature with triglyphs and mutules, and a decorative stone cornice with
scroll ends and an anthemion in the center.
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Another Neoclassical Revival-style building in the district is the Stumpf Hotel (127-6031-
0001) at 728 East Main Street. Designed by Carl August Ruehrmund (1855-1927) in
1909 for E.A. Stumpf and built in 1910, this seven-story, five-bay, brick hotel has
limestone facing on the lower two stories. The bays of the third through sixth stories are
defined by attenuated Doric pilasters with a cornice above the sixth story. The
foundation has been covered with polished granite facing.

The American National Bank Building (127-6031-0010) was built in 1904 on the corner
of 10th and Main Streets (1001 East Main) as a three-bay, nine-story building designed
by the architectural firm Wyatt & Nolting of Baltimore. Originally, the building was an
early Commercial-style skyscraper with Renaissance Revival details. In 1909, Virginia
architect Charles K. Bryant (1869-1933) drew plans for a three-bay addition to the east
side of the building. This addition also raised the building to eleven stories with a
parapet and a highly decorative cornice. In the 1960s, the architectural firm of
Armstrong and Solomansky modernized the building by removing the elaborate
architectural decoration and covering the building with a metal skin with metal windows.
In 2003, the building was rehabilitated and the decorative elements, namely the
entrances, balconies, and the entablature were reconstructed using modern materials.
Currently the building is an eleven-story, six-bay, brick, skyscraper in a Post Modern
interpretation of the original decorative elements. At the base of the building are two
arches with rusticated surrounds and recessed entrances.

The Travelers’ Building, currently known as The Plantation House, (127-6031-0015) at
1106-1108 East Main Street was built in 1910. It was designed by architect, W. Duncan
Lee (1884-1952), then with the firm Clinton & Russell. John T. Wilson & Co. was the
builder for this thirteen-story, five-bay, Commercial-style skyscraper. It is one of the few
early-twentieth-century skyscrapers in Richmond that has retained its original
overhanging cornice. The first and second stories are part of a Doric order frontispiece
with egg and dart molding in the cornice. There is a one-story, three-bay, flat-roofed
porch in the center of the first story. It has fluted Composite columns on stone bases
that are set on the concrete sidewalk. The lower three stories, and upper two stories, of
the building are faced with limestone. Flemish bond brick pilasters delineate the fourth
through eleventh stories and the three center bays in this section have decorative
spandrels. The upper two stories are separated from the lower stories by a plain
entablature and there are two-story, Doric pilasters that delineate the bays.
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When completed in 1912, the First National Bank Building, (127-6031-0006) at 823 East
Main Street, was the tallest structure in Richmond. Nineteen stories in height, it was
one of the first high-rise office towers to be built in the city. Designed by Alfred Charles
Bossom (1881-1965), an architect with the firm Clinton & Russell, it remains one of the
City's finest examples of Neoclassical Revival commercial architecture. This
monumental, steel-frame structure is clad in limestone, granite, and brick. Heroically
proportioned, fluted, Corinthian pilasters adorn the first four stories and support an
elaborate entablature. This composition defines the base of the building. There is
decorative terra cotta ornamentation at the base and in the top four stories. Despite
some changes in surface finishes, most significantly the loss of the cornice, the building
has retained its monumental character and distinction, which have made it a landmark
in downtown Richmond. The First National Bank Building is individually listed on the
National Register of Historic Places.

Hotel Rueger (127-6031-0020) at 9 North 9" Street was built in May of 1912 by Virginia
architect Charles M. Robinson (1867-1932). Designed in the Classical Revival style,
the nine-story, six-bay hotel has a flat roof and a decorative entablature supported by
consoles at the roofline and over the second story. A heavy, decorative entablature
with large consoles separates the rusticated limestone facade on the first story from the
upper floors. In the center bay there is a recessed entrance with stairs leading up to the
main lobby and steps down to the basement. The building has light gray common bond
brickwork with limestone quoins at the corners from the second story up. The center
bay from the second to seventh story is framed with stone paneled pilasters that are
caped with large stone consoles that support a stone entablature under the eighth-story
windowsills. Alternating stories in this center bay have stone balconies with consoles,
wrought iron balustrades, and decorative friezes. When built in 1912, the hotel was
called Hotel Rueger. It was renamed the Raleigh Hotel in 1952 and is currently named
the Commonwealth Park Hotel.

New York architects, Mowbray & Uffinger, designed the American Trust Company
building (127-6031-0011), erected in 1919. The one-story, one-bay, limestone-faced,
Neoclassical-style financial institute has classical details and a mezzanine level. The
building located at 1005 East Main Street has a decorative parapet on the facade with
turned balusters, and a highly stylized entablature with acanthus leaves and cartouches
that becomes the capitals of the paneled pilasters on the facade. There is a broken
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segmental-arch pediment at the entrance, which is supported by, rusticated, fluted lonic
columns. Above the capital on each column is a classical head in the entablature frieze.

From 1916 to 1940, the Richmond City Directories list the building at 1110 East Main
Street as Murphy Fuel and Coal (127-6031-0016). Built in 1916, this three-story, two-
bay, brick Late 19th and 20th Century Revival-style commercial building has a front
parapet with stone decoration in geometric shapes. The single bay on the first story is
framed with a molded stone surround. The second and third stories have projecting
Flemish bond brick pilasters with stone caps and bases between the bays that run the
height of both stories. There are decorative geometric shaped stone spandrels between
the stories.

The Virginia Trust Company building (127-6031-0005), located at 821 East Main Street,
was designed by Alfred Charles Bossom in the Neoclassical Revival style. The
building’s one-story, one-bay fagade is in the form of a Roman triumphal arch with an
overall height of ninety-one feet. The fagade is clad with granite and Classical terra
cotta ornamentation and has massive piers supporting a fourteen-foot-deep Corinthian
entablature above which is a twelve-foot attic. The fagcade has anthemion bands at the
impost blocks and at the entablature. There are foliated bands along the architrave. In
the entablature frieze is the inscription “VIRGINIA TRUST COMPANY” and in the center
panel of the attic story is the inscription “FOUNDED 1892 / ERECTED1920.” The
Virginia Trust Company Building is individually listed on the National Register of Historic
Places.

The State & City Bank & Trust Company Bank Building (127-6031-0007), later known
as the State Planters Bank, and then the United Virginia Bank, is located at 900 East
Main Street. Built in 1923 by architects Clinton & Russell, in collaboration with Wells,
Holton & George of New York, this limestone-clad Beaux Arts-style bank is fourteen
stories in height and ten-bays wide. The center six bays of the building project slightly
from the fagade and are framed by Corinthian pilasters. The first three stories form the
five-bay wide base of the building. In the center three bays is an articulated entrance
with colossal fluted lonic columns that support a full entablature. In the center-bay of
the first story is the entrance bay with a decorative stone doorframe. There is an
elaborate stone-carved frieze with urns and floral motifs on either side of the entablature
above the third story. Above the eleventh story is a cornice that visually separates the
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top three floors from the body of the building. The center six-bays of the top three
stories is recessed under a frontispiece with Corinthian pilasters.

The Bank of Virginia (127-6031-0002), formerly the Morris Plan Bank of Virginia, was
built in 1931 by Hoggson Brothers at 800 East Main Street. This three-story, seven-bay
wide, limestone-clad Beaux Arts-style bank has a rounded corner with a shallow
stepped parapet at the northeast corner of 8" and Main Streets. The first-story is six-
bays wide with rusticated limestone blocks. Colossal fluted Doric columns that extend
the full height of the building delineate the entrance bay at the curved corner and
support the building’s entablature. The door is framed by an elaborate limestone
surround with griffins and carved stone cresting. On the second story, there are six
bays, of which the four center bays are recessed behind the colossal columns. There is
a roundel with a carved eagle above the second-story window in the left bay. On the
third story, there are five bays, four of which are recessed behind the colossal columns.

The United States Parcel Post building (127-6031-0014) at 1100 East Main Street was
designed in 1929 by architect Marcellus Eugene Wright, Sr. (1881-1962) in association
with the Richmond architectural firm Lee & Smith & Van der Voort. This is a six-story,
five-bay, Egyptian Revival-style government building. On the first story, the large
windows have limestone lintels with carved hieroglyphics. Over the doors, the lintels
are decorated with sunburst shapes, stylized eagles, and rectilinear forms. Above the
first story, chiseled into the fagade is a sign that reads “United States Parcel Post.”
There is a limestone stringcourse, carved with eagles and interlaced decorations, that
forms the lintel above the fifth-story windows. At the sixth story, carved limestone
panels with cartouches flank the center bay.

Today the Main Street Banking Historic District remains the dominant financial center in
downtown Richmond, Virginia. The historical integrity of the district is intact even with
the introduction of a few modern skyscrapers. The modern buildings are sighted on
plazas and set back from the street. The setbacks of the historic buildings in the district
are consistent and their facades dominate the streetscape. The varying rooflines and
decorative styles add visual interest. The district's streetscape is well-maintained and
undergoing improvements, such as the restoration of the facade of the former American
National Bank at 1001 East Main Street. Several contributing buildings have
noncontributing additions. For example, the State & City Bank & Trust Company Bank
Building (127-6031-0007) has a modern addition designed by the architectural firm of
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Lee, King & Poole in 1962. This addition is a simple seven-story box-shaped building
rendered in simplified modern detail. The Bank of Virginia (127-6031-0002) has two
noncontributing office additions designed by Ballou & Justice in 1970. The Stumpf
Hotel (127-6031-0001) has a noncontributing parking deck built circa 1980.
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Inventory
East Main Street

728 East Main Street 127-5640 Other DHR Id #: 127-6031-0001
Primary Resource Information: Hotel, Stories: 7, Style: Classical Revival, 1909

This seven-story, five-bay, Classical Revival-style building was designed by Carl
Ruehrmund for E.A. Stumpfin 1909. There is a non-historic parking deck addition,

ca. 1980.

Individual Resource Status: Hotel Contributing

Individual Resource Status: Parking Garage Non-Historic Addition
800 East Main Street 127-6031-0002 Other DHR Id #: 127-5490

Primary Resource Information: Bank, Stories: 3, Style: Beaux Arts, 1931

This three-story, seven-bay, limestone-covered Beaux Arts-style bank sits on a
corner lot and on an incline. The Morris Plan Bank of Virginia was designed in
1931 by Hoggson Brothers, Architects. There are two non-historic modern office
building additions designed by Ballou & Justice in 1970.

Individual Resource Status: Bank Contributing

Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Non-Historic Addition

Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Non-Historic Addition
814 East Main Street 127-5643 Other DHR Id #: 127-6031-0003

Primary Resource Information: Commercial Building, Stories: 3, Style: Italian
Renaissance, ca 1893

This three-story, four-bay, Italian Renaissance-style brick building has a flat roof
and a parapet with a stone cap and recessed brick panels.

Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing
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816-818 East Main Street  127-5644 Other DHR Id #: 127-6031-0004

821

823

Primary Resource Information. Commercial Building, Stories: 3, Style: Italian
Renaissance, ca 1893

This three-story, four-bay, Italian Renaissance-style brick building has a flat roof
and a parapet with a stone cap and recessed brick panels. The ground level has a
modern storefront facade in pre-cast concrete with a double-leaf recessed metal
door and a transom.

Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing

East Main Street 127-0249 Other DHR Id #: 127-6031-0005
Primary Resource Information: Bank, Stories: 1, Style: Classical Revival, 1919

The Virginia Trust Company building is one-story, one-bay, with a mezzanine level
and is done in the Classical Revival style. lIts fagade is in the form of a Roman
triumphal arch and the building was designed by Alfred Bossom and Carneal &
Johnston of Richmond in 1919. The building is individually listed on the National
Register of Historic Places.

Individual Resource Status: Bank Contributing

East Main Street 127-0381 Other DHR Id #: 127-6031-0006
Primary Resource Information: Bank, Stories: 19, Style: Classical Revival, 1912

The tallest structure in Richmond when completed in 1912, the First National Bank
Building remains one of the City's finest examples of Classical Revival-style
commercial architecture. Nineteen stories in height, it was one of the first high-rise
office towers to be built in the city. The steel-frame structure is clad in limestone,
granite, and brick and it was designed by architect Alfred Charles Bossom in
conjunction with the New York firm of Clinton & Russell in 1911. There is a 1939
Modern addition and alteration to the rear of the building. The building is
individually listed on the National Register of Historic Places.

Individual Resource Status: Bank Contributing
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900 East Main Street 127-5648, 127-5649 Other DHR Id #: 127-6031-0007
Primary Resource Information: Bank, Stories: 14, Style: Beaux Arts, 1923

The State & City Bank & Trust Company Bank building is a fourteen-story, ten-bay,
limestone faced, Beaux Arts-style bank with a flat roof. New York architects
Clinton & Russell, in collaboration with Wells, Holton & George of New York,
designed the bank in 1923. There is a seven-story, ten-bay, Modern Movement-
style, non-historic bank addition was done in 1962 and designed by architects Lee,

King & Poole.
Individual Resource Status: Bank Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Financial Institution Non-Historic Addition

909 East Main Street 127-5656 Other DHR Id #: 127-6031-0008
Primary Resource Information: Financial Institution, Stories: 12, Style: Classical
Revival, 1904

This twelve-story, five-bay, Classical Revival-style financial institution is U-shaped
and has a central light court. Originally, the Mutual Building was nine stories, but
eight years after the original portion was built the upper three stories were added.
The first nine stories were built in 1904 and designed by the architectural firm
Clinton & Russell. The upper three stories were added in 1912.

Individual Resource Status: Financial Institution Contributing

1000 East Main Street 127-0170 Other DHR Id #: 127-6031-0009
Primary Resource Information: Customs House, Stories: 3, Style: ltalianate,
1858

The Customs House, now the Federal Courthouse, is currently a four-story
Italianate-style building on the Main Street facade. The first story has twenty-one
bays and the upper stories all have fifteen bays. Visually the building now is in five
sections with the second and fourth sections recessed. As originally designed in
1852 and completed in 1858, the Customs House was a handsome granite
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Italianate-style building placed in the middle of the block between Bank and Main
Streets. Because of the steep grade of the site, the Main Street facade was three
stories while the Bank Street facade was only two. The Bank Street facade was
originally five-bays wide with the center three bays spaced closely together. The
Main Street fagade sat on a rusticated basement containing five arched openings.
Additions were made in 1889, 1910, and 1930.

In spite of all the additions and renovations the Customs House has undergone,
the original architectural character has been retained and incorporated into the
newer sections. Ammi Burnham Young designed the original Customs House in
1852 and the 1930 addition and remodeling was drafted by James A. Wetmore.
The Customs House is individually listed on the National Register of Historic
Places.

Individual Resource Status: Customs House Contributing

1001 East Main Street 127-5160 Other DHR Id #: 127-6031-0010

Primary Resource Information. Commercial Building, Stories: 11, Style: Other,
1904

The American National Bank building was originally built in 1904 on the corner of
10th and Main Streets as a three-bay, nine-story brick building designed by
Baltimore architects Wyatt & Nolting. In 1909, plans for a three-bay addition and
raising the building to eleven stories were drawn by Virginia architect Charles K.
Bryant. In 1930, Marcellus E. Wright redesigned the interior banking room.
Architectural changes have altered the building’s style over the years. Currently
the building is an eleven-story, six-bay, brick, skyscraper in a Post Modern
interpretation of the original decorative elements. Originally the building was an
early Commercial-style skyscraper with Renaissance Revival details. The building
was remodeled in the 1960s in the Modern Movement style.

Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing
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1005 East Main Street  127-5161 Other DHR Id #: 127-6031-0011
Primary Resource Information: Financial Institution, Stories: 1, Style: Classical
Revival, 1919

Built for the American Trust Company in 1919 by New York architects, Mowbray &
Uffinger, this one-story, one-bay, limestone-clad Classical Revival-style financial
institution has classical detail and a mezzanine level.

Individual Resource Status: Financial Institution Contributing

1007-1013 East Main Street  127-0023 Other DHR Id #: 127-6031-0012
Primary Resource Information. Commercial Building, Stories: 4,
Style: Italianate, 1866

The Stearns Block, built in 1866, is a four-story, fourteen-bay, ltalianate-style
building with a cast-iron facade, side and rear walls laid in common bond brick,
and architectural elements inspired by Venetian Renaissance Palazzi. The
building was originally designed by architect George H. Johnson in 1866 and was
restored in 1976 by Glave Newman Anderson Architects. The building is
individually listed on the National Register of Historic Places.

Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing

1015 East Main Street 127-0196 Other DHR Id #: 127-6031-0013
Primary Resource Information: Commercial Building, Stories: 4,
Style: Italianate, ca 1866

The Virginia Fire and Marine Insurance Company building, currently known as the
Branch Building, is a four-story, Italianate-style structure with a four-bay cast-iron
facade. Like the building to its west, there are architectural elements on the
facade that are inspired by Venetian Renaissance Palazzi, most notably the
loggia. The building was designed by architect George H. Johnson in 1866. The
building is individually listed on the National Register of Historic Places.

Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing
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1100 East Main Street  127-5157 Other DHR Id #: 127-6031-0014
Primary Resource Information: Government Office, Stories: 6,
Style: Art Deco, 1929

The United States Parcel Post Building was designed in 1929 by architect
Marcellus E. Wright, Sr. and the Richmond architectural firm Lee, Smith & Van der
Voort contributed to the project. This six-story, five-bay, Art Deco-style
government building has decorative limestone panels and lintels that have carved
hieroglyphics and other stylized shapes.

Individual Resource Status: Government Office Contributing

1106-1108 East Main Street 127-5156 Other DHR Id #: 127-6031-0015
Primary Resource Information. Commercial Building, Stories: 13,
Style: Commercial, 1910

The Travelers’ Building (Plantation House) was built in 1910 and designed by W.
Duncan Lee of Clinton & Russell. This thirteen-story, five-bay, Commercial-style
skyscraper has an overhanging cornice with modillions, dentils, and a plain
paneled frieze at the roofline. The upper two stories are separated from the lower
stories by a plain entablature.

Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing

1110 East Main Street  127-5155 Other DHR Id #: 127-6031-0016
Primary Resource Information: Commercial Building, Stories: 3,
Style: Late 19th and 20th Century Revivals, 1916

Built in 1916, this three-story, two-bay, brick, Late 19th and 20th Century Revival-
style commercial building has a flat roof, a front parapet with concrete coping, and
stone decoration in the center of the parapet with geometric shapes. From 1916 to
1940, the Richmond City Directories list the building as Murphy Fuel and Coal.

Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing
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1112 East Main Street 127-5154 Other DHR Id #: 127-6031-0017
Primary Resource Information: Commercial Building, Stories: 3,
Style: Italianate, 1866

This three-story, three-bay, brick commercial building was originally designed in
1866 in the ltalianate style. Most of the Italianate features have been removed
and Modern Movement-style elements added.

Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing

1114 East Main Street = 127-5153 Other DHR Id #: 127-6031-0018
Primary Resource Information. Commercial Building, Stories: 3,
Style: Italianate, ca 1866

Built in 1866 as part of the William Mitchell Estate, this three-story, three-bay,
Italianate-style, brick commercial building has a shed roof and a decorative cast-
iron cornice with architrave arches over the window bays on the fagade. There is a
cast-iron frontispiece on the first story with a plain box cornice, a decorative frieze,
and paneled Corinthian pilasters.

Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing
1116 East Main Street 127-6031-0019 Other DHR Id #: 127-5153
Primary Resource Information: Commercial Building, Stories: 4,
Style: Italianate, ca 1866
Built in 1866 as part of the William Mitchell Estate, this four-story, three-bay,

Italianate-style, brick commercial building has a shed roof with a decorative cast-
iron cornice with architrave arches over the window bays on the fagade.

Individual Resource Status: Commercial Building Contributing
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1200 East Main Street  127-6031-0021 Other DHR Id #: 127-0150
Primary Resource Information: Bank, Stories: 3.5,
Style: Romanesque, ca 1893

Built in 1893 by architect Charles H. Read, Jr., this 3%-story, three-bay,
Richardsonian Romanesque-style, brick and brownstone bank has three gable
roofs that intersect in an I|-plan over the rectangular structure and semicircular
arched windows and door frames. The Planters National Bank is individually listed
on the National Register of Historic Places. Additions include a harmonious, but
non-historic office wing and a non-historic parking deck.

Individual Resource Status: Bank Contributing
Individual Resource Status: Office Building Non-Historic Addition
Individual Resource Status: Parking Deck Non-Historic Addition

North 9th Street

9 North 9th Street 127-5502 Other DHR Id #: 127-6031-0020
Primary Resource Information: Hotel, Stories: 10, Style: Classical Revival, 1912

Hotel Rueger was built from 1912 to 1913 by the Virginia architect, Charles M.
Robinson. Designed in the Classical Revival style, the nine-story, six-bay hotel
has a flat roof and a decorative entablature supported by consoles at the roofline
and over the second story. The building has light grey common bond brickwork
with limestone quoins at the corners from the second story up. There is a one-
story addition on the roof, which is set back from the fagade.

Individual Resource Status: Hotel Contributing
Total Number of Contributing Resources: 21

(Six of the 21 resources in the district are already listed individually in the National
Register of Historic Places.)



NPS Form 10-800-a OMB Approval No. 1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number _ 8 Page _19

Main Street Banking Historic District (127-6031)
Richmond (Independent City), VA

Statement of Significance

The Main Street Banking Historic District is significant because of its long-standing
history as the financial center for the city of Richmond and for a time the
Commonwealth of Virginia. Financial institutions were first established on Main Street
in the early 1800s but all were lost except for the Customs House in the Evacuation Fire
of April 1865. Shortly after the fire, the financial district began to rebuild along Main
Street. The industry boomed for a short period until the Panic of 1873, which halted
economic growth in Richmond, and the nation until 1878. The majority of Richmond’s
financial institutions survived the Panic of 1873 and twenty years later, endured the
financial burdens of the Panic of 1893. Several banks and insurance agencies opened
on Main Street in the 1870s and 1880s.

The district’s historical buildings are solid examples of mid-nineteenth to early twentieth
century architecture. The architectural styles found in the district include Italianate,
Italian Renaissance, Classical Revival, Beaux Arts and Commercial. Prominent
Richmond and New York architects, including Alfred Charles Bossom, W. Duncan Lee,
Charles Morrison Robinson, and Marcellus Eugene Wright, Sr., designed buildings in
the district. The New York firm of Clinton and Russell designed four buildings in the
district. Architects from Baltimore, New Hampshire, and Philadelphia were responsible
for the designs some of the earlier buildings in the district. These early architects
included, Ammi Burnham Young (1798-1874) who designed several Virginia Custom
Houses including the Customs House in Richmond.

Criteria Statement: The district is eligible for listing under criteria A and C. Under
criteria A, the Main Street Banking Historic District is the center of Richmond'’s financial
district and is associated with the establishment of Richmond as the financial center for
the Commonwealth of Virginia. Under criteria C, the district is representative of
commercial and early high-rise architecture from the mid-nineteenth and early twentieth
century and contains works by a number of local and nationally recognized architects of
the period.

Historic Background

Since the founding of Richmond, commercial pursuits have been concentrated on or
near Main Street. With the construction of the State Capitol, the growth of the Court
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(Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the
property for National Register listing)
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A

Property is associated with events that have made
a significant contribution to the broad patterns of
our history.

Property is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

Property embodies the distinctive characteristics
of a type, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses
high artistic values, or represents a significant and
distinguishable entity whose components

lack individual distinction.

[l D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield,

information important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations
(Mark "X" in all the boxes that apply.)
Property is:

[J A owned by a religious institution or used for
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religious purposes.

removed from its original location.

a birthplace or a grave.

a cemetery.

a reconstructed building, object, or structure.
a commemorative property.

less than 50 years of age or achieved significance
within the past 50 years.

Narrative Statement of Significance

Richmond (Independent City), Virginia
County and State

Areas of Significance
(Enter categories from instructions)

Architecture, Commerce, Economics

Period of Significance
1850-1941

Significant Dates
1865, 1873, 1893, 1929

Significant Person
(Complete if Criterion B is marked above)

Cultural Affiliation
N/A

Architect/Builder

Charles M Robinson; Clinton & Russell; Alfred Charles Bossom;
W _Duncan Lee; Carneal & Johnston; Mowbray & Uffinger;
Marcellus E Wright, Sr.; Charles K Bryant; Wyatt & Nolting;

son Brothers; Carl Ruehrmund; James A Wetmore; Ammi B
Young; George Johnson; Lee, Smith & Van der Voort; Charles H
Read

(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

9. Major Bibliographical References
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(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)
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designated a National Historic Landmark

recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey
# HABS VA-847, HABS VA-845

recorded by Historic American Engineering
Record#
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= State Historic Preservation Office
0 Other State agency

O Federal agency

= Local government
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U Other
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End neighborhood, and the river crossing at 14" Street, commercial development was
pushed further west in the city. Like many sectors of the city, businesses and
residences were mingled in the early years of development along Main Street.
However, by the early twentieth century, all domestic structures on East Main Street
between 12" and 7" Streets, with the exception of hotels, were demolished to make
way for the modern high-rise and other commercial pursuits. Unlike other areas of the
city, offices were located above the storefronts instead of residences.

On 3 April 1865, the Evacuation Fire destroyed most of the buildings in the district. In
anticipation of the Union occupation of the city, orders were given to torch Mayo's
Bridge, the warships trapped on the James River, and the warehouses that held the
stores of the Confederate Army. By the time the flames were extinguished, the ‘burned
district’ stretched from the riverbank north to Main Street. Main Street lost all its
buildings between 14™ and 8" Streets, except for the Customs House and the
Spottswood Hotel. The Spottswood Hotel burned in 1870 and was never rebuilt.

Richmond’s financial district was established on East Main Street in May of 1817, when
the Bank of Virginia erected a building between 10" and 11" Streets, adjoining the
Farmer's Bank. Although the Mutual Assurance Society of Virginia, one of the oldest
insurance organizations in America, was founded in 1794 at 1014 East Main Street, the
growth of the banking and insurance industry did not begin until after the establishment
of the Bank of Virginia. The Mutual Assurance Society building was destroyed during
the Evacuation Fire and was rebuilt around 1866 on the same site. It was demolished
in the late 1920s to make way for the United States Parcel Post Building and Customs
House extensions. During the Civil War; the Mutual Assurance Society of Virginia was
almost forced to close its doors; however, “...it paid, nevertheless, $150,000 of the
losses it sustained during the four years of hostilities, while every other insurance
company of the South closed out and abandoned business altogether.”
4 A noted Boston architect named Isaiah Rogers (1800-1869) built the Exchange Bank,
located at 1104 East Main Street, in 1841.° Except for its superb granite-fagade, the
building was engulfed by flames during the Evacuation Fire. The bank was
reconstructed by 1866, only to be demolished for the United States Parcel Post Building
in the late 1920s.

As the Civil War was ending, Richmond’s financial prospects were endangered. On 2
April 1865, General Lee ordered General Ewell to evacuate Richmond and destroy the
bridges. At midnight on 3 April, committees appointed to destroy the liquor in the city
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began dumping barrels of whiskey in the gutters and smashing fine bottles of liquor in
the streets.” After 3 a.m., the Shockoe, Public, Mayo, and Dibrell warehouses were set
on fire and the fire soon spread out of control. Terrible looting began and the city was in
chaos. The evacuation was complete by 6 a.m. and the Mayo’s and railroad bridges
were set on fire. Major General Godfrey Weitzel, the Union commander, whose troops
reached Richmond on 4 April, saved the city by ordering that the fire be put out.
Weitzel's engineering troops accomplished this daunting task by creating a firebreak in
front of the advancing flames and using bucket brigades to save the homes on the safe
side of the firebreak.® The fire destroyed the center of Richmond's financial district and
city life on Main Street. This included fine food and clothing shops, restaurants,
gambling houses, saloons, and the better houses of prostitution.

The Customs House was used by the Confederacy throughout the war to house the
Treasury Department, Department of State, the Cabinet Room, and President Jefferson
Davis’s offices. The first floor was the Treasury Department, the second floor was the
Department of State and Cabinet Room, and the third floor was Davis’s office."
Ironically, in May of 1867, Davis was brought back to this building to be arraigned on
charges of treason against the United States when the Customs House and Post Office
served as the Federal Courthouse at 1000 East Main Street.

At the end of the Civil War, two new banks were established in Richmond, the First
National Bank of Richmond, which consolidated with National Exchange Bank in 1867,
and the National Bank of Virginia. The National Bank of Virginia was located at 1018
East Main Street and by 1893; it was the oldest bank in the city that remained in
business. Its principle correspondents included Hanover National Bank, the Bank of
New York (N.B.A.), and Importers & Traders National Bank, of New York; the Fourth
Street National Bank and First National Bank, of Philadelphia, and the National
Exchange Bank, Baltimore.! A few years later, the State Bank of Virginia (1869),
Merchants National Bank of Richmond (1870), City Bank of Richmond (1870), and the
Citizens Bank of Richmond (1872) opened for business. The Merchants National Bank
of Richmond was founded by several businessmen in the city including John P. Branch.
Mr. Branch was president of the bank in the early 1890s and the bank was recognized
at that time as a “United States, State and city depository, and as one of the most
substantial banks in the State in respect of resources and business.” The City Bank of
Richmond, located at 1109 E. Main Street, was originally called Mechanics & Merchants
Savings Bank until the name was changed in 1872. This bank not only provided
banking services but also served insurance needs as well. Its president in 1893,
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William H. Palmer, was also the president of Virginia Fire & Marine Insurance Company
at 1015 E. Main Street.”

Shortly after the Evacuation Fire in 1865, commercial pursuits and financial institutions
began to rebuild along Main Street. By 1866, the horse-drawn street railway line was
rebuilt and service re-established through Main Street’s financial district.! The industry
boomed for a short period until the Panic of 1873, which halted economic growth in
Richmond, and the nation until 1878. Black Friday, which occurred on 24 September
1869, did not materially affect Richmond because the city had not recovered from the
effects of war, but when Jay Cooke & Co., of New York, failed 18 September 1873, the
panic was felt in Richmond.™ By Wednesday the 24", a state of crisis was realized and
“a large number of policemen were on Main Street between Eleventh and Fourteenth to
keep people moving for fear of trouble at the banks.” The first bank to report failure
was the Dollar Savings on the corner of Main and 14™. Once the news spread of this
bank’s failure, people began to fear for their assets and hurried to the other banks to
withdraw their money. The next bank to fail was Isaacs, Taylor, & Williams. It was then
rumored that Merchants National Bank was in danger because the president, Thomas
Branch, was connected to a bank in Petersburg that had already failed, and a run was
made on the institution.” The next bank to be stormed was Planters and then First
National. All of the national banks stood by each other and none of them failed.? After
the banks closed on 24 September, the merchants had a meeting at the Corn Exchange
to assure the people that the banks would be solvent if they would leave their funds in
the bank. The bank officials also met that night and decided to issue certificates for
$500 and $1,000 that would be accepted as currency.* When the banks opened on the
25" the “storm had subsided and the First National, National Bank of Virginia,
Merchants National, Planters National, Richmond Banking and Insurance Company,
and the State Bank ...went on with their business as if nothing had happened.” The
effects of the panic also paralyzed business; many of the manufactories in the city were
shut down or their workforce was reduced. In response to this crisis, the Council tried to
give work to all that they could, various organizations assisted the poor, and the
ministers of the city met in response to Mayor Keiley’s request and planned to raise
funds for the suffering.® Despite the effects of the panic, the majority of Richmond’s
major financial organizations survived until the recovery in 1878. During these years of
depression, one private bank by the name John L. Williams & Sons was established at
1000 East Main Street (Customs House) in 1874. By the 1890s, this bank had the
facilities to execute orders on the European exchanges. The bank was held in “high
authority upon Southern financial and developmental projects by reason of the fact that,
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besides doing a remarkable business in Southern investment securities, they published
a Manual of Investments, which is the largest and most comprehensive work of the kind
issued by any banking house in the world.™”

By 1878, Richmond’s banking and insurance organizations were again on the rise. In a
twelve-year period following the end of the depression, four banks and one insurance
company were established on Main Street. These five businesses were C. W. Branch &
Co. (1880), Savings Bank of Richmond (1889), Virginia Mercantile & Safe Deposit
Company (1890), Virginia Safe Deposit & Fidelity Company (1892), and Bowman &
Mowery, agents for Brooklyn Life Insurance Company of New York (1890). C. W.
Branch & Co was a private bank and brokerage at 1111 East Main Street, run by the
son of Thomas Branch, and boasted as having a private wire to Norfolk, Washington,
Baltimore, Philadelphia, Boston, Chicago, and New York." The Virginia Mercantile &
Safe Deposit Company (1108 East Main Street) was incorporated by a special act of the
General Assembly of Virginia on January 24, 1890. It reportedly “negotiates loans;
executes trusts of every description and in every fiduciary capacity; acts as executor,
administrator, curator, guardian, trustee under wills and deeds, etc.; has the power and
right to become surety for the faithful performance of trusts, contracts, and the fidelity of
employe[e]s; abstracts and INSURES TITLES TO REAL ESTATE.”" There were many
other banks and insurance companies with offices in the district in the 1880s whose
names were not listed on the Sanborn maps. According to the 1886 Sanborn map,
there were banks located at 1016, 1101, and 1115 East Main Street and insurance
companies at 1006, 1014, 1103, 1104 %2, 1106, 1108, 1117 East Main Street. By 1893,
Richmond reputedly had twenty-one banks -- four with national charters; ten operating
under state laws; eight as savings banks; three trust companies; five private banks; and
one bank in Manchester.” Most of these twenty-one banks were located on East Main
Street. The Planters National Bank and the Virginia Safe Deposit & Fidelity Company
were located in the 1200 block. The City Bank of Richmond (1109), the National Bank
of Virginia (11" & E. Main), the Merchants & Planters Savings Bank (1107), Savings
Bank of Richmond (in National Bank of VA building), Virginia Mercantile & Safe Deposit
Company (1108), and C. W. Branch & Co. (1111) were all located in the 1100 block.
The private bank of John L. Williams & Sons was located in the 1000 block of East Main
Street. In Andrew Morrison’s book, Richmond: The City on the James, the insurance
companies on or near the financial district of East Main Street in 1893 included:

Virginia Fire & Marine Insurance Company (1015),

Mutual Assurance Society of Virginia (1014),

Virginia State Insurance Company (1006), Davenport & Co. (1113),
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Pleasants & Hall (1117),

George D. Pleasants & Sons (1104 %),

D. R. Midyette the southern manger for Fidelity Mutual Life Association of
Philadelphia (1111),

W. L. Seddon & Co the southern managers for American Employer’s Liability
Insurance Co. (1106),

Bowman & Mowery the agents for Brooklyn Life Insurance Company of New
York (8 N. 10" Street),

Peyton & Sinton (1016),

William D. Rice (6 N. 10" Street),

John R. West for Equitable Life Assurance Society of the United States (1110),

Howard Swineford for Eastern Virginia Mutual Life Insurance Company of New
York (1108)

In addition to the financial institutes in the district, there were other commercial
enterprises, including clothing stores, restaurants, hotels, photo shops, and printing
presses. According to the Beer’s Atlas of Richmond of 1876, there were two hotels, two
printing workshops, and many commercial stores. By the late 1880s, there were steam
printing presses at 808, 827, 1001, 1112, 1118, and 1206 East Main Street; tin shops at
728 and 830; photo shops at 819, 920, and 913. There was a paper box factory at
1107; liquor stores at 805 and 1109; a dancing hall at 1017-1019; the Chesapeake &
Ohio Railroad offices above the first floors of 801-809; and a commercial club at 912.*
One of the earliest printing presses on East Main Street was the Richmond Dispatch,
founded in 1850 by James A. Cowardin. Although the original “Dispatch Building” was
destroyed in the Evacuation Fire, it was rebuilt at the northwest corner of Main and 12"
streets in 1866. The newspaper was published daily and in November 1887, their press
was reported to a have a capacity of 24,000 copies an hour.” Like many commercial
sections of the city, the locations of small business changed frequently over the years.
Several well known clothing and furnishings stores in 1893 included A. Saks & Co. at
1017-1019 East Main Street and Burke’s Clothing House at 916 East Main. A. Saks &
Co. had stores throughout the South and its proprietor Mr. Saks had connections with
the house of Hammerslough, Saks & Co., New York, one of the largest manufactures of
clothing in America.” Burke's Clothing House was a branch of one of Baltimore’s oldest
clothing manufacturers, and its Richmond branch was said to be a “thoroughly-lighted,
fully-equipped and well-managed clothing house.”™  Three other commercial
businesses that were in operation in the district in 1893 were the Brookland Railway &
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Improvement Company at 819 E. Main; Cobb & Wingfield, real estate agents and
auctioneers, at 901 E. Main; and Denoon, Tuppen & Co., real estate agents,
auctioneers, and brokers, at 821 E. Main.™

Richmond banks endured the financial burdens of the Panic of 1893. When Andrew
Morrison reported in his book in 1893 that, “Richmond is looked on throughout a large
portion of the South as an important insurance center,” the financial organizations had
yet to feel the effects of the depression that started in June of that year. Although
Richmond remained an important insurance center, the effects of the panic were felt
and the economic climate grew worse. By 10 August 1893, the “banks stopped paying
out money except in small amounts and began paying in script, and this caused more of
a feeling of panic, so that the people began to hide their money rather than deposit it
where they could not get it when they wanted it.”® Nevertheless, the financial industry
in Richmond held strong and none of the major banks failed during the next four years
of the depression. It was during these years of panic that Richmond’s Chamber of
Commerce built a building at the corner of 9" and Main Streets. The building was
designed in 1891 by local architect, Marion J. Dimmock (1824-1908); however, it was
demolished in 1911 after the property was sold to First National Bank.®®

At the turn of the twentieth century, Richmond was a modern metropolis that had
survived the hardships of the depressions in the later part of the nineteenth century.
The streetscape of Main Street began to change in the early 1900s with the construction
of skyscrapers inspired by the Chicago “commercial style.” Many architects from New
York, Baltimore, and Philadelphia were commissioned to design these modern high-
rises and only a few of the architects were native Virginians. The presence of so many
northern architects in Richmond can be attributed to two forces. Many of the financial
institutions that they were designing for had northern ties, especially to New York. The
other explanation is that Richmond viewed itself as cosmopolitan and sophisticated and
therefore had a preference for hiring architects from New York, Philadelphia, and
Baltimore. It was also in these cities, again especially in New York, that major
advances were being made in building design and technology and Richmond wanted to
be perceived as part of that trend. The Mutual Building, designed by Clinton & Russell
of New York City, stood nine stories tall when completed in 1904. A 1912 addition
added three more stories making the building an even more imposing twelve stories. In
1904, architects Wyatt & Nolting of Baltimore (active 1887-1935) devised the nine-story
American National Bank at 1001 East Main Street. Five years later, Virginia architect
Charles K. Bryant (1869-1933) was commissioned to design a $200,000" addition that
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added three bays to the original building and two stories to the resulting six-bay
structure. This addition left the American National Bank eleven stories high. In 1909,
Carl August Ruehrmund (1855-1927), a German drafter from Philadelphia, designed a
seven-story hotel for E. A. Stumpf on the northwest corner of 8" and Main Streets. The
hotel's lobby was remodeled in 1922 for the banking room of the Morris Plan Bank of
Richmond.®® Ruehrmund was also responsible for the additions to the Customs House
that was made while he was working on the Stumpf Hotel. Clinton & Russell architect,
W. Duncan Lee (1884-1952), designed the Travelers’ Building (Plantation House),
located at 1106-1108 East Main Street, which was an impressive thirteen stories. Alfred
Charles Bossom (1881-1965), also of Clinton & Russell, continued this firm’s high-rise
work with the building of the nineteen-story First National Bank in 1912. When the
skyscraper was complete, it was the tallest building in Richmond and it was one of the
first high-rise office towers to be built in the city. This was Bossom’s first skyscraper
design and cost $880,000 to build."" Another nine-story building constructed between
1912 and 1913 was the Hotel Rueger, at 9 North 9" Street. It was designed by Virginia
architect Charles M. Robinson (1867-1932) and cost $210,000 to build." The hotel was
one of ‘the places to stay’ when visiting Richmond in the 1930s and its restaurant, which
began at that location in 1846", was a highly fashionable place to dine. The hotel, which
is now called the Commonwealth Park Suites Hotel, is the only hotel near Capitol
Square that remains in operation today. These high-rises greatly changed Richmond’s
skyline giving the city a thoroughly modern look.

In the 1920s, the skyline of Richmond was a mixture of high-rises and low-rises. Two
large trust companies erected one-story, highly decorative Neoclassical Revival-style
structures on Main Street. The first of these two buildings was the American Trust
Company at 1005 East Main Street. Designed by the New York City firm Mowbray &
Uffinger in 1919, it cost $50,000 to construct. The local architectural firm Carneal &
Johnston was associated with the project* The second trust company building erected
in 1920 was the Virginia Trust Company at 821 East Main Street. Alfred Charles
Bossom designed the building. The architectural firm Carneal & Johnston was also
associated with this project. The Virginia Trust Company was formed in 1892 and it
was the first institution of its type to open in Virginia." At that time, trust companies were
a new concept in the South; traditional banks were not allowed to have trust
departments. There were only a few high-rises added to East Main Street in the 1920s.
The fourteen-story State & City Bank & Trust Company Bank building at 900 East Main
Street was designed in 1923 by the New York architectural firm Clinton & Russell, in
collaboration with Wells, Holton & George of New York at the cost of $1,500,000.™™
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Over the years, the bank has changed names numerous times and in 1962, a modern
low-rise office addition was made to the rear. In 1929, Marcellus E. Wright, Sr. (1881-
1962), a prominent Richmond architect, designed the United States Parcel Post
Building located at 1100 East Main Street. The Richmond architectural firm Lee, Smith
& Van der Voort worked with Wright on the project. Shortly after the Parcel Post
building was completed, James A. Wetmore (1863-1940), the acting supervising
architect of the Treasury Department in Washington, D. C., designed additions for the
Customs House."" The latest of the contributing buildings to be built in the district was
the Morris Plan Bank of Virginia in 1931. Constructed on the northeast corner of 8" and
Main Streets, the bank cost $280,000 to build and was designed by the Hoggson
Brothers.”® Hoggson Brothers was an architectural firm from New York City that was
active between 1922 and 1935. The Morris Plan Bank of Virginia, later known as the
Bank of Virginia, was established in 1922 and boasted that their company offered
consumer credit to the average citizen.” The bank was originally located in the former
lobby of Stumpf Hotel until the new building was complete in 1931 at 800 East Main
Street.

Richmond'’s financial district was not initially hit as hard as other urban areas by the
effects of the stock market crash in October of 1929. The city had a well-balanced
economy and the tobacco and rayon industries grew due to a continuing demand for the
products. However, “as the crisis deepened, more and more businesses failed, with
consequent joblessness and suffering.”% By 1935, Richmond’s economy was suffering
as bad as the rest of the nation. Richmond, like the entire country, did not begin to fully
recover from the depression until the United States entered World War 1l in 1941.

Today the Main Street Banking Historic District continues to be the thriving financial
center of the city. Many of the original banks merged with others on the street and new
banks have moved in to take the place of others. There are several modern
skyscrapers housing large financial institutions new to Main Street. These skyscrapers
abut the historic district and strengthen the district’'s financial industry cluster. Hotel
Rueger, renovated in 1982, is still a functioning hotel, which now goes by the name of
the Commonwealth Park Suites Hotel. Stumpf Hotel is still in use but was converted to
office space many years ago. The Customs House and United States Parcel Post
buildings are still being used by the federal government.
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Bank Name Year Established Address in 1893
Planters National Bank 1868 corner of 12™ & Main Streets
First National Bank of Richmond 1865
State Bank of Virginia 1869
Merchants National Bank of Richmond 1870
City Bank of Richmond 1870 1109 E. Main Street
National Bank of Virginia 1865 11" & E. Main Streets
Citizens Bank of Richmond 1872

Merchants & Planters Savings Bank
Security Savings Bank
Union Bank

923 E. Main Street
1107 E. Main Street

Savings Bank of Richmond 1889 in National Bank of VA building
Virginia Safe Deposit & Fidelity Co. 1892 occupied half of 1200 E. Main Street

Virginia Mercantile & Safe Deposit Co. 1890

1108 E. Main Street

John L. Williams & Sons 1874 1000 E. Main Street
Thomas Branch & Co of the Merchants Bank building
C. W. Branch & Co. 1880 1111 E. Main Street
Insurance Name Year Established Address in 1893

Virginia Fire & Marine Insurance Co.
Mutual Assurance Society of Virginia 1794

Virginia State Insurance Company ca.1865
Davenport & Co. 1861
Pleasants & Hall 1847

George D. Pleasants & Sons

D. R. Midyette, (southern manger for

Fidelity Mutual Life Assoc. of Philadelphia)

W. L. Seddon & Co., (southern managers for
American Employer’s Liability Insurance Co.)

Bowman & Mowery, (agents for 1890
Brooklyn Life Insurance Company of New York)

Peyton & Sinton

William D. Rice

(Times Building)
John R. West, (Equitable Life Assurance Society of U. S.)
Howard Swineford, (Eastern Virginia, 1868

Mutual Life Insurance Company of New York)

1015 E. Main Street
1014 E. Main Street
1006 E. Main Street
1113 E. Main Street
1117 E. Main Street
1104 2 E. Main Street
1111 E. Main Street

1106 E. Main Street
8 N. 10" Street

1016 E. Main Street
6 N 10" Street

1110 E. Main Street
1108 E. Main Street
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Year Established Address in 1893
819 E. Main Street
901 E. Main Street

821 E. Main Street

Name of Other Businesses in District
Brookland Railway & Improvement Company
Cobb & Windfield, (real estate agents & auctioneers)
Denoon, Tuppen & Co., 1890
(real estate agents, auctioneers, brokers)

Banks in District on 1886 Sanborn map

Address

Bank
First National Bank
Bank
Bank

Insurance Offices 1886 Sanborn Map

1016 E. Main St.
1104 E. Main St.
1101 E. Main St.
1115 E. Main St.

Address

Virginia State Insurance Co.
Insurance

Insurance

Insurance

Insurance

Insurance Office

Insurance Office

Virginia Fire & Marine Insurance Co,

Banks in District on 1905 Sanborn map

1006 E. Main St.
1014 E. Main St.

1104 2 E. Main St.

1106 E. Main St.
1108 E. Main St.
1103 E. Main St.
1117 E. Main St.
1015 E. Main St.

Address

Bank

First National Bank
Bank

American National Bank
Merchants National Bank
Bank

Bank

State Bank of Virginia
Bank

1016 E. Main St.
1104 E. Main St.
1102 E. Main St.
1001 E. Main St.

1101-1103 E. Main St.

1107 E. Main St.
1109 E. Main St.
1111 E. Main St.

1200-1202 E. Main St.
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Insurance Offices 1905 Sanborn Map Address

L. L. & G. Ins. Co. 1113 E. Main St.
Virginia Fire & Marine Insurance Co, 1015 E. Main St.
Banks in District on 1924 Sanborn map Address

American National Bank 1001-3 E. Main St.
American Trust Co. 1005 E. Main St.
Union Bank 1104 E. Main St.
Bank 1016 E. Main St.
Merchants National Bank 1101-3 E. Main St.
State & City Banks 1109-11 E. Main St.
Planters National Bank 1200-1202 E. Main St.
Insurance Offices 1924 Sanborn Map Address

L. L. & G. Ins. Co. 1113 E. Main St.

Virginia Fire & Marine Insurance Co, 1015 E. Main St.
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10. Geographical Data
Acreage of Property 10.5 acres

UTM References
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1 18 284920 4157000 4 18 284590 4157250
Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing

2 _18 284980 4157020 5 _18 284570 4157110
Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing

3 _18 284680 4157390 6 _18 284800 4157000
Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing

See continuation sheet.
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Geographical Data

Verbal Boundary Description

Starting at a point on the southwest corner of Bank and Governor (13") streets, the
boundary runs south along the west side of Governor (13") Street to the northwest
corner of East Main and Governor (13") streets; then proceeds west along the north
side of East Main Street to the intersection with the eastern boundary (projected to the
north) of parcel EO000080008; then proceeds south along said parcel line to the east-
west alley between East Main and East Cary streets; then proceeds west along the
north edge of said alley to South 10" Street; then proceeds north along the east side of
South 10™ Street to the southeast corner of East Main and South 10™ streets; then
proceeds west along the south side of East Main Street to the intersection with the
eastern boundary of parcel EO000079001; then proceeds south along said parcel line to
the southeast corner of said parcel; then proceeds west along said parcel line to the
west side of South 9" Street; then proceeds south along the west side of South 9"
Street to the northwest corner of South 9" and East Cary streets; then proceeds west
along the north side of East Cary Street to the western boundary of parcel
WO0000010009; then proceeds north along said parcel line to the southern boundary of
parcel W0000010007; then proceeds west along said parcel line to the southwest
corner of the parcel; then proceeds north along said parcel line to the south side of East
Main Street; then proceeds west along the south side of East Main Street to the western
boundary of parcel W0000006021 (projected to the south); then proceeds north along
said parcel line to the northern line of said parcel; then proceeds east along said parcel
line to the east side of North 8" Street; then proceeds north along the east side of
North 8" Street to the north boundary line of parcel W0000005024; then proceeds east
along said parcel line to the west side of North 9" Street; then proceeds south along the
west side of North 9" Street to the northern boundary line of parcel W0000005017; then
proceeds west along the said parcel line to the northwest corner of said parcel; then
proceeds south along said parcel line to the north side of the east-west alley between
East Main and East Franklin streets; then proceeds east along the north side of the
alley to the western boundary line of parcel W0000005017; then proceeds south along
said parcel line to the north side of East Main Street; then proceeds east along the north
side of East Main Street to the northeast corner of the intersection of East Main and
North 9" streets; then proceeds north along the east side of North 9" Street to the south
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side of Bank Street; then proceeds east along the south side of Bank Street to the
beginning.

Boundary Justification

The boundaries for the Main Street Banking Historic District are well defined. The
northern boundary (Bank Street) is defined by the Virginia State Capital building and its
grounds. Capital Square has been determined eligible as a separate district. The other
edges of the district are defined by the existence of modern buildings.
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Photographic Index

The following information is the same for all photographs:

Property: Main Street Banking Historic District (127-6031)
Location: Richmond, VA
Negatives Filed: Virginia Department of Historic Resources, Richmond, Virginia

The following is the same for photographs 1,2,and 3:

Photographer: Erika Schmelzer for Kimberly M. Chen & Associates, Inc.
Date: 29 June 2004

Negative Number: 21452

Photo 1 of 10 Customs House, 1000 E. Main Street

Photo 2 of 10 American National Bank, 1001 E. Main Street
Photo 3 of 10 Hotel Rueger, 9 North 9" Street

For photograph 4:

Photographer: Jean McRae for Kimberly M. Chen & Associates, Inc.
Date: February 2002

Negative Number: 19635

Photo 4 of 10 Morris Plan Bank of Virginia 800 E. Main Street
The following is the same for photographs 5 through 9:

Photographer: Jean McRae for Kimberly M. Chen & Associates, Inc.
Date: February 2002

Negative Number: 19636

Photo 5 of 10 Looking Southwest from 1100 Block of East Main Street
Photo 6 of 10 Looking West from 900 Block of East Main Street

Photo 7 of 10  First National Bank, 832 East Main Street

Photo 8 of 10 Looking East from 800 Block of East Main Street

Photo 9 of 10 Stearns Block, 1007-1013 East Main Street

Photo 10 of 10 Looking at the 1000 Block of East Main Street
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" Richmond City Building Permit #2251, 1911.

" Richmond City Building Permit #2847.

¥ Morrison, 49.

* Richmond City Building Permit #6387.

" Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission Staff, “Virginia Trust Company” National Register of Historic
Places Inventory Nomination Form, 1976.

™™ Wells & Dalton, ed., 467.

" Richmond City Building Permit #21289. The cost of the project was $779,000.

% Richmond City Building Permit #21998.

PPHarry M. Ward, Richmond: An lllustrated History (Northridge, California: Windsor Publications, 1985),
364.

% Virginius Dabney, Richmond: the Story of a City (Richmond, Virginia: University Press of Virginia,
1992), 312.
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Prepared by:

Lena Sweeten McDonald, National/State Register Historian
Virginia Department of Historic Resources

2801 Kensington Avenue

Richmond, VA 23221

804-482-6439

Lena.mcdonald@dhr.virginia.gov

Additional Documentation, May 2014

The Main Street Banking Historic District was listed in the National Register of Historic Places in April
2005. Since that time, the resource count included with the original nomination has been found to be
slightly inaccurate. An updated resource count has been prepared for Section 5. One contributing
resource, located at 828 E. Main Street, has been demolished and is not included in the count of
contributing resources.

Additionally, the addresses in the inventory of contributing resources included in Section 7 of the
nomination have been discovered to be incomplete. An updated inventory using the current address (or
address range) for each property is provided below. Finally, the 6 properties within the historic district
that were individually listed prior to the historic district nomination have been identified in the
inventory, along with the year of their NRHP individual listing.

Section 5
Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count)

Contributing Noncontributing
15 0 buildings
0 0 sites
0 0 structures
0 0 objects
15 0 Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed in the National Register __6
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Section 7 — Historic Inventory

East Main Street

728-730 East Main Street 127-5640 Other DHR Id#: 127-6031-0001
Primary Resource: Hotel/Inn (Building), Stories 7, Style: Classical Revival, 1909
Contributing Total: 1

800 East Main Street; 5-7 N. 8" Street, and 817 E. Franklin Street 127-5490; 127-5570
Other DHR Id#: 127-6031-0002

Primary Resource: Bank (Building), Stories 3, Style: Beaux Arts, 1931

Contributing 7otal: 1

814 East Main Street 127-5643 Other DHR Id#: 127-6031-0003

Primary Resource: Commercial Building (Building), Stories 3, Style: Italian Renaissance Revival,
Ca 1893

Contributing Total: 1

816 East Main Street 127-5644 Other DHR Id#: 127-6031-0004

Primary Resource: Commercial Building (Building), Stories 3, Style: Italian Renaissance Revival,
Ca 1893

Contributing Total: 1

819-821 East Main Street 127-0249 Other DHR Idi#: 127-6031-0005
Primary Resource: Bank (Building), Stories 2, Style: Classical Revival, 1920
Contributing 7otal: 1

Individually listed in the NRHP, 1977

823-827 East Main Street/25 S. 9" Street 127-0381 Other DHR Id#: 127-6031-0006
Primary Resource: Bank (Building), Stories 19, Style: Classical Revival, 1911
Contributing 7otal: 1

Individually listed in the NRHP, 1982

900 East Main Street 127-5648 Other DHR Id#: 127-6031-0007
Primary Resource: Bank (Building), Stories 14, Style: Beaux Arts, 1923
Contributing Total: 1

901-909 East Main Street 127-5656 Other DHR Id#: 127-6031-0008
Primary Resource: Bank (Building), Stories 12, Style: Neo-Classical Revival, 1904
Contributing Total: 1

1000 East Main Street 127-0170 Other DHR Id#: 127-6031-0009
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Primary Resource: Customs House (Building), Stories 3, Style: Italianate, 1858
Contributing Total: 1
Individually listed in the NRHP, 1968

1001 East Main Street 127-5160 Other DHR Id#: 127-6031-0010
Primary Resource: Commercial Building (Building), Stories 11, Style: Other, 1904
Contributing Total: 1

1005 East Main Street 127-5161 Other DHR Idi#: 127-6031-0011
Primary Resource: Bank (Building), Stories 2, Style: Classical Revival, 1919
Contributing Total: 1

1007-1013 East Main Street 127-0023 Other DHR I1d#: 127-6031-0012
Primary Resource: Commercial Building (Building), Stories 4, Style: Italianate, 1866
Contributing 7otal: 1

Individually listed in the NRHP, 1969

1015-1017 East Main Street 127-0196 Other DHR Id#: 127-6031-0013
Primary Resource: Commercial Building (Building), Stories 4, Style: Italianate, Ca 1866

Contributing Total: 1
Individually listed in the NRHP, 1969

1100 East Main Street 127-5157 Other DHR Id#: 127-6031-0014
Primary Resource: Post Office (Building), Stories 6, Style: Exotic Revival, 1929
Contributing 7otal: 1

1106-1108 East Main Street 127-5156 Other DHR Id#: 127-6031-0015
Primary Resource: Commercial Building (Building), Stories 13, Style: Commercial Style, 1910
Contributing 7otal: 1

1110 East Main Street 127-5155 Other DHR Idi#: 127-6031-0016
Primary Resource: Commercial Building (Building), Stories 3, Style: Vernacular, 1916
Contributing Total: 1

1112 East Main Street 127-5154 Other DHR Id#: 127-6031-0017
Primary Resource: Commercial Building (Building), Stories 3, Style: Italianate, 1866
Contributing Toral: 1

1114 East Main Street 127-5153 Other DHR Id#: 127-6031-0018
Primary Resource: Commercial Building (Building), Stories 4, Style: Italianate, 1866
Contributing Total: 1

1116 East Main Street 127-6031-0019 Other DHR Id#: 127-5153
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Primary Resource: Commercial Building (Building), Stories 4, Style: Italianate, 1866
Contributing Total: 1

1200-1212 East Main Street 127-0150 Other DHR Id#: 127-6031-0021

Primary Resource: Bank (Building), Stories 3.5, Style: Romanesque Revival/Richardsonian, 1893
Contributing Total: 1

Individually listed in the NRHP, 1982

North 9" Street

9 North 9th Street 127-5502 Other DHR Id#: 127-6031-0020
Primary Resource: Hotel/Inn (Building), Stories 10, Style: Classical Revival, 1912
Contributing Total: 1

Demolished
828 East Main Street 127-5645 Other DHR Id#:
Primary Resource: Commercial Building (Building), Stories 2, Style: International Style, 1958
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
EVALUATION/RETURN SHEET

REQUESTED ACTION: ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION

PROPERTY Main Street Banking Historic District
NAME :

MULTIPLE
NAME :

STATE & COUNTY: VIRGINIA, Richmond

DATE RECEIVED: 5/19/14 DATE OF PENDING LIST:

DATE OF 16TH DAY: DATE OF 45TH DAY: 7/05/14
DATE OF WEEKLY LIST:

REFERENCE NUMBER: 05000527

REASONS FOR REVIEW:
APPEAL: N DATA PROBLEM: N LANDSCAPE: N LESS THAN 50 YEARS: N
OTHER : N PDIL: N PERIOD: N PROGRAM UNAPPROVED: N
REQUEST: N SAMPLE: N SLR DRAFT: N NATIONAL: N
COMMENT WAIVER: N

ACCEPT RETURN REJECT DATE

ABSTRACT/SUMMARY COMMENTS :

onal Documentation Approved

Additi

RECOM. /CRI%

REVIEWER DISCIPLINE
-
TELEPHONE DATE T b, P& /
f

DOCUMENTATION see attached comments Y/N see attached SLR Y/N

If a nomination is returned to the nominating authority, the
nomination is no longer under consideration by the NPS.



National Register of Historic Places
Memo to File

Correspondence

The Correspondence consists of communications from (and possibly to) the nominating authority, notes
from the staff of the National Register of Historic Places, and/or other material the National Register of
Historic Places received associated with the property.

Correspondence may also include information from other sources, drafts of the nomination, letters of
support or objection, memorandums, and ephemera which document the efforts to recognize the
property.
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For the Main Street Banking Historic District nomination
here is a copy of a support letter from the City of Richmond
which was sent prior to the nomination’s registration with
the state of Virginia.

Also included is a copy of the Federal notification of the
district listing.



COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA

Department of Historic Resources

W. Tayloe Murphy, Jr. 2801 Kensington Avenue, Richmond, Virginia 23221 Kathleen 8. Kilpatrick
Secretary of Natural Resources Director
February 12, 2005 Tel: (804) 367-2323
Fax: (804) 367-2391
John S. Sorenson, FPO TDD: (804) 367-2386

. . www.dhr.state.va.us
United States Postal Service

4301 Wilson Boulevard
Suite 300
Arlington, VA 22203-1861

RE: Covesville Historic District, Albemarle County; Kinsale Historic District,
Lancaster County; Main Street Banking Historic District; Remington Historic District,
Fauquier County

Dear Mr. Sorenson:
We are pleased to inform you that the following proposed historic districts will be considered for
nomination to the National Register of Historic Places at our March 16th, 2005 Boards Meeting:

Covesville Historic District, Albemarle County

Kinsale Historic District, Lancaster County

Main Street Banking Historic District, City of Richmond
Remington Historic District, Fauquier County

There is a postal facility in the proposed Kinsale Historic District, located at 490 Kinsale Road
(non-contributing building); a facility in the proposed Covesville Historic District, located at
5912 Covesville Store Road (non-contributing building); and a former postal facility in the
proposed Remington Historic District, located at 225 East Main Street (contributing building). A
former post office facility was located in the Main Street Banking Historic District, in the
Customs House at 1000 East Main Street (contributing building).

We want let you know about the nomination for your future planning purposes. We have
notified all property owners by letter, and by a newspaper legal notice. The processing of all
districts has followed the state regulations, which invites all owners and adjacent owners to a
public information session. We provide comments from these meetings to the State Historic
Preservation Officer.

The National Register is the Federal Government's official list of historic properties worthy of
preservation. Listing in the National Register provides recognition and assists in preserving our
Nation's heritage.

Administrative Services Capital Region Office Portsmouth Region Office Roanoke Region Office Winchester Region Office

1 Courthouse Avenue 2801 Kensington Ave. 612 Court Street, 3™ Floor 1030 Penmar Ave..SE 107 N, Kent Street, Suite 203
Petershurg, VA 23803 Richmand, VA 23221 Portsmonth, VA 23704 Roanoke, VA 24013 Winchester, VA 22601

Tel: (804) 863-1624 Tel: (804) 367-2323 Tel: (7567) 396-6707 Tel: (540) 857-7585 Tel: (540) 722-3427

Fax: (804) 862-6196 FFax: (804) 367-2391 Fax: (757) 396-6712 Fax: (540) 857-7588 Fax: (540) 722-7535



Enclosed is a copy of the notice that was distributed to all owners in each district by first class
mail. Also included are maps that delineate the boundary of the districts. Listing in the National
Register provides the following benefits to federally owned historic properties:

-Consideration in the planning for federally assisted projects. Section 106 of the National
Historic Preservation Act of 1966 provides that the Advisory Council on Historic
Preservation be given an opportunity to comment on projects affecting such properties.

-Consideration of historic values in the decision to issue a surface coal mining permit
where coal is located, in accordance with the Surface Mining and Control Act of 1977.

For more information about Virginia’s Register Program you can visit the web site:
http://www.dhr.state.va.us/registers/register.htm

You may review the pending nominations on the agency web site:
http://www.dhr.virginia.gov/homepage features/board activities.htm

If you wish to comment the historic district proposal, please send to Kathleen S.
Kilpatrick, Director, State Historic Preservation Office. Please feel free to contact me if
you have further questions. I can be reached at 804-367-2323/x-115 (email:
Marc.Wagner@dhr.virginia.gov).

Sincerely yours,
Mdrc Christian Wagner
hitectural Historian/National Register Manager

State Historic Preservation Office
Enclosure



City ofF RicHMoOND
DepARTMENT OF ComMmuNITY DEVELOPMENT
CommissION OF ARCHITECTURAL Review

March 9, 2005

Jean McRae
Register Program Specialist / Historic Preservationist

Cc: Ann Andrus
Director, Capital Region Preservation Office

Virginia Department of Historic Resources
2801 Kensington Avenue
Richmond, VA 23221

Dear Jean and Ann,

Following my telephone conversation with Ann last week regarding
National Register nomination #127-6031, Main Street Banking District, | am
formally passing on the support of the City of Richmond’s Commission of
Architectural Review. While the Commission does approve the nomination as
submitted and reviewed by D.H.R., they would like to be assured that the
importance of the modern financial buildings along Main Street — the Ross
Building (801 East Main Street); the Eighth and Main Building (707 E. Main
Street), Suntrust Bank (919 E. Main Street), and Bank of America (1111 E. Main
Street) — is conveyed to the State Board. As time passes and these significant
post-WWII buildings approach the 50-year age mark, expansion of the proposed

district boundaries should be anticipated as well as encouraged. These four

900 East Broap Svreer, Room 510 * Ricumonn, VA 23219 » 804.646.6335 Fax 804.646.5789 * www.RICHMONDGOV.COM
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modernist buildings, built between 1965 and 1983, have contributed and continue
to contribute to the further evolution of Main Street and its historic role as

Richmond’s downtown financial district.

Once again, feel free to call me at (804) 646-7550 with any additional

questions.

Truly,

Mike Yengling
Historic Preservation Planner

Housing and Neighborhood Preservation

900 East Broao Streev, Room 510 * Ricumono, VA 23219 » 804.646.6335 Fax 804.646.5789 ¢ WwW.RICHMONDGOV.COM




COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA

Department of Historic Resources

Molly Joseph Wird 2801 Kensington Avenue, Richmond, Virginia 23221 dulle'¥. Lengan

Secretary of Natural Resources

Director

Tel: (804) 367-2323
Fax: (804) 367-2391
May 15, 2014 www.dhr.virginia.gov

Mr. Paul Loether

Chief, National Register of Historic Places and National Historic Landmarks Programs
National Park Service 2280

National Register of Historic Places

1201 "I" (Eye) Street, N.W.

Washington D.C. 20005

RE: Main Street Banking Historic District, City of Richmond, Virginia

Dear Mr. Loether:

The enclosed additional documentation, referenced above, is being submitted for inclusion in the
National Register of Historic Places. The Main Street Banking Historic District originally was listed in the
National Register in 2005. The enclosed additional documentation provides an accurate count of contributing
resources within the historic district (Section 5), an updated inventory using the current address (or address
range) for each property in the district (Section 7), and identification of the 6 properties within the district that
were individually listed in the National Register prior to the district nomination and their respective year of
listing (Section 7). Also enclosed herein is a sketch map that shows the district boundaries along with the
correct address of each property within the district.

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. My direct phone line is 804-
482-6439,

e Muald

Lena Sweeten McDonald
National/State Register Historian

Enclosures
Administrative Services Capital Region Office Tidewater Region Office Western Region Oftice Northern Region Office
10 Courthouse Ave. 2801 Kensington Avenue 14415 Old Courthouse Way 962 Kime Lane 5357 Main Street
Pelersburg, VA 23803 Richmond, VA 23221 2" Floor Salem, VA 24153 P.O. Box 519
Tel: (804) 862-6408 Tel: (804) 367-2323 Newport News, VA 23608 Tel: (540) 387-5443 Stephens City, VA 22655
Fax: (804) 862-6196 Fax: (804) 367-2391 Tel: (757) 886-2818 Fax: (540) 387-5446 Tel: (540) 868-7029

Fax: (757) 886-2808 Fax: (540) 868-7033



